P -

k|
4
&
6.
7.
8
9
1

0.

CITY OF F_:AIRVIEW. -
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

MAY 17, 2018

" T:00P.M.

AGENDA

Roll Call
Call to order by Mayor Carroii

A.

Prayer and Pledge

Approval of the Agenda

Public Hearing

Citizen Comments {Limited to the first b citizens to sign in and a limit of 3 minutes each).
Awards and/or Recognitions

Public Announcements

Staff Comments

Approval of the Minutes

Consent Agenda Consisting of ltems as Follows

A.

Minutes fram the May 3, 2018 Board of Comrmissioners Meeting

11. Old Business
12. New Business

A
B.

C.

ITaom

Certificate of Compliance Renewal to Sell Wine in a Retail Food Store (Publix, 7014 City Center \Way)
Resolution No. 171-18, A Resolution of the City of Fairview, Tennessee, Designating the Storage of Bowie
Nature Park Historical Items and Materigls at the Williamson County Museum and Archives

Ordinance No. 2018-09, An Ordinance of the City of Fairview, Tennessee Adopting the Annual Budget
and Tax Rate for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2018 and Ending June 30, 2019

Resolution 12-18, A Resolution of the Cily of Fairview, Tennessee, Approving a Confract with Civit and
Environmental Consultants {C.E.C.) for Professional Services Related to the Fairview Boulevard
Resolution 13-18, A Resolution of the City of Fairview, Tennessee, Approving an Amendment to the

. Contract 160087, Pin 123627.00 between the State of Tennessee and the City of Fairview for the

Construction of a Sidewalk along Fairview Boulevard (SR-100) between Bowie Lake Road and Park
Village Court

Sidewalk Addition from Bowie Lake Road to Park Village Court

Approval of Pyro Shows Material Contract for Independence Day Celebration

Approval of Extreme Lighting and Sound Event Production Services Agreement for Independence Day
Celebration

Addendum D, Exlension to the Interlocal Agreement Between Williamson County and the City of Fairview
for the Provision of Periodic Road Work and Maintenance to Municipal Roads

12, City Manager items for Discussion

A,
B.

Misceilaneous Updates
City Attomey Comments

14. Communications from the Mayor and Commissioners
15. Adjournment




CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE
WINE IN GROCERY STORE

Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 57, Section 57-3-803 and 57-3-808, i

Name of Applicant: Store Managet, Filippo Bracagfia

Corporation Name; Publix Tennessee, LLC

Business Address: 3300 Publix Corporate Pkwy

Lakeland, FL 33811

Mailing Address: ___ PO BOX 32027

Lakeland, FL 33802

Date of Birth: SSN:

Has made ap‘plication for a Certificate of Compliance to sell retail food store wine in the
County of Williamson, State of Tennessee, City of Fairview at

Publix Tennessee, LLC #1360 7014 City Centar Way Fairvisw, TN 37062

(Name and Street Address of Grocery Store)

And that an investigation has been undertaken of the applicant’s criminal record and of the compliance of
said business, and from said investigation the undersigned certify:

1. That the applicant or applicants who are to be in actual charge of the business have not been convicted
of a felony within a ten-year period immediately preceding the date of application and, if a corporafion,
that the executive officers or those in control have not been convicted of a felony within a ten-year
period immediately preceding the date of the application; and

2. That the applicant or applicants have secured a location which lies within the city fimits of the City of
Fairview and which complies with all applicable zoning laws adopted herein by the City.

Signed this the day of - , 20

Mayor or Other Official Head of Municipality ATTEST: City Recorder



TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

ATTN: TORIS
901 R.S. Gass Boulevard
Nashullle, Tennessee 27216-2639

Bill Hastam (615) 744-4057 Mark Gwyn
Governor Facsimlle (615) 744-4285 Director
05/01/2018

PUBLIX TEMNNESSEE LLC
3300 PUBLIX CCRPORATE PKWY
LAKELAND FL 33811

Tennessee Criminal History Records Request

NO TENNESSEE CRIMINAL HISTORY RECORD HAS BEEN FQUND FOR THE PERSON LISTED BELOW.
NOTE: All aliases submitted have been searched.

FILIPPO BRACAGLIA
BRACAGLIA, PHIL

Please be aware that, unless a fingerprint comparison is performed, it is impossible for the Tennessee Bureau of

Investigation to be sure the record belongs to the individual you requested . A fingerprint comparison wili only be performed
in the event of a written appeal of criminal history results. The information you receive will be based cn only those arrests
which occurred within the state of Tennessee.

The Tennessee Bureau of Investigation found no Tennessee criminal history based on the information provided. No criminal
record check was conducted for other states or for the Federa! Bureau of Investigation.

Tennessee Open Records Information Services
Tennessee Bureau of Investigation

901 R.S. Gass Blvd.

Nashville, TN 37216

INTERRATIONALLY ACCREDITED SINCE 1994




PUBLIX TENNESSEE, LLC
MANAGERS

Name/Title

Randall T. Jones

CEQ & President

Jeffrey G Chamberlain

Vice President

Joseph DiBenedetto, Jr.

Vice President

David P. Phillips
CFQ and Treasurer

John A. Attaway, Jr.

Secretary




F LU . L I..-Y L Ny . ¥iol
Fairview, TN 3?662
PHONE: (615) 799-2484

Rcpt Date: 05/04/2018 Rcpt #: 00019227
Cash Acct: 110-11100
Received Of: PUBLIX TENNESSE, LLC
Cmt : CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE RENE Tendered Amount : 250.00
Recelpt Amount: 250.00
Change Due: 0.00
----------- RECEIPT DISTRIBUTION -------w__-
FUND FUNCT-OBJ DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
110 32200 WINE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 250.00
——————————— PAYMENT DISTRIBUTION ------=-—-—--
PAYMENT DESCRIPTION REFERENCE NUMBER AMOUNT
CHECK 134867 250,00
* % CUSTOMER COPY* * Received By: COUNTERLI

CITY OF FAIRVIEW
7100 Cilty Center Wa

Fairview, TN 37062
PHONE: (615} 799-2484

Rcpt Date: 05/04/2018 Rcpt #: 00019227
Cash Acct: 110-11100
Received Of: PUBLIX TENNESSE, LLC

Cmt: CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE REN Tendered Amount: 250.00
Receipt Amount: 250.00
Change Due: 0.00
——————————— RECEIPT DISTRIBUTTION----r--ncw--
FUND FUNCT-OBJ DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

----------- PAYMENT DISTRIBUTION -—--mrn-----
PAYMENT DESCRIPTION REFERENCE NUMBER AMOUNT
CHECK 134867 250.00

**QRIGINAL COPY** Received By: COUNTER1




CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE

RESOLUTION NO._11-18

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE,

THE STORAGE OF BOWIE NATURE PARK HISTORICAL ITEMS AND MATERIALS

AT THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY MUSEUM AND ARCHIVES.

WHEREAS, the city owns numerous records, documents and historical items
related to the Bowie Nature Park, and

WHEREAS, these materials are currently stored at the city’s public works facility
and accessible to the Friends of Bowie Nature Park, and

WHEREAS, these items have been catalogued by the Friends of Bowie Nature
Park and are in need of proper safekeeping and care, and

WHEREAS, the Williamson County Museum and Archives has agreed to allow
these items to be stored at their facility in Franklin, and

WHEREAS, while stored at the Williamson County Museum and Archives the
records, documents and historical items will be accessible to the City of Fairview and to
the Friends of Bowie Nature Park, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

The City of Fairview Board of Commissioners hereby resolves to store the city’s Bowie
Nature Park records, documents and historical items, as catalogued by the Friends of
Bowie Nature Park, at the Williamson County Museum and Archives.

Mayor

Attest:

City Recorder

Approved As To Form:

City Attorney




iz Anr

elOEmLT

2105 AN i 5

a7

QLIEY B :Hul.m:. \

ainlaetd:

TEBL BT

- ngno.sw

IR 4 0 Fpy-Et Way

T T e ey Jo) Giaia s

i b TS

St n whonpn

LT

£

5L CTN

st Ykl

[BUSS apesun Bupis sy g oF A S kel

T S e A A

ol HiiE J0 loliadis

NS "

$ ORI L TR

Sl

SAlYIE

Noiidiisad

Uggone g boRs,

Y

&

RS A0 EIAT

Shglias i




Z1L0% A z 2r02 E 15 87

C_OE9 LBy ad Y EAMDIRE]|

g TIBILaL ey,

BLILELY



Eh0E AN

|OZALY

TI0Z AFE )0 B8

4109 # 0K SO UaImpURL

" o Foiy Jop vazl mei W)

3

g s . ..!....i.......,.......,aam.uhw.a.g.m....n.@&n

..._Gn- T




LN [ ZLOZ A o e

VE LG i
S dAdsaR

N ALY s AT €

e T R i e e i &

ipERapmIIE a Eplooes g Inode sa@al|

sy nace Bunimads owog g 0 BReL S0 At L) 4] bR

we e o o o SN ] MG B O ¥ 10 B

(LI Vi
A1) 60 U] eg i opuopepexidy [T MEET

S ltser iy vion

BIOCEL



LR 5 ZUOE AT g 58

- \..m.u..csm.m-,wuuﬁ, érci B S

JIERGILRA

T Tty ret, W g T

S5 aNERER o didigiiad Epail 5

I 10, a0 1B
WP £ AW "L o 65

R e U R

BLOZEHY



Fali-AiLd

fanenr

ZU0T AN 50 B

e T o

SN, PUT PAND TREY A A

e

T il HEee,

e o B8 iR

S S e W

e e _.hh_.._.._oE.mo. E.mﬁm..un Gani B4 G

it [ S v il oy




210 Anr o se

Zi02 Anr 2

AR AL g i i

| .,. |un-uoaL:o> ..

A mﬁ.&mnﬁua_uoo.ﬁxelmﬁ._oﬁou.

FOWEL



Zhat g 1n se

s A -]

FHLeLY



240z Ang

BOTEHF

TLNZ AT 30 =

R ey T A

ey e AU s G|

e v G

e A ELARL B i SUA BRI G R s
pETRIER RIS 20|00 MOV 10 UmOT0E SN0 10




THIT AL

WIS L

113

ZL0Z A )0 55

. " g 6l e mnwﬂc_d.

DR T A

R

Tunide sabiy|




20T AT

HOTMLY

mped i1

2T AC Jo B

| sedjibi aouaiia] jEeRsL "

B R ..Ehm,.w_uuuax & e saiies eriiliisw’

sy

Lo

ikl A 50t

gl ikl oL




i ZHR AN e 5B
ZHIE AT [

T linifis el LS 6 34 N0H UL n

T et e SR . ; Shmd| | ReEIRAERL

"G =muﬁ=m§mm_ J

e B i

[:[1e el



z108 S

HLOEGHY

33

[5a0Hd ALED O SRl Y W) tineude)

20z Ainp o g

g e ey 30 RIGhS S|

wisypacd

S OB pS

A Ay ol AT GRS ) oS

Fyideid i ol REGU




2107 A0 018
ZL0E dar g

HLOLGY



20z ApT

BMIEELY

Tl

ZioR Aine jo 58

 PUE SIS DT $I800




Zuz e

LR A8

13

THE Ane o e

AN TS

A e e i DG BGRE

wenfazy L) salad solon o pu




gz Ane

HLOLGLA

Lk
LT ANT o 58




Zing Ane L33 ZEOZ Ay o cw

“adiy Be ‘megusond o

et S e b AT W OSSR i ——

FaliLEHY



T A

BLOLA LY

)

R

iR o e ET by Aiswdn|

HIE A 105 A
o]y SRIY (Y SVRUO0 BIARE A,

BEELIGTIT)

uotpp s EESS Y HER IS s

“gglioElEl”

T i o w8

- eoRRAY E TE] RS

FF{0U]|




[t 200

etagLe

TLOZ AN i

" e 01 PO B LpRnh ihode T

U] iR SN M AiRGwd S




z10z fnr

gomElr

Z102 A s s




CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE

RESOLUTION NO.__12-18

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE,

CONTRACT WITH CIVIL AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS (C. EC) FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RELATED TO THE FAIRVIEW BOULEVARD
SIDEWALK ADDITION FROM BOWIE LAKE ROAD TO PARK VILLAGE COURT.

WHEREAS, the city has contracted with the State of Tennessee to install a
sidewalk along Highway 100 from Bowie Lake Road to Park Village Court, and

WHEREAS, the Fairview Board of Commissioners recently selected Civil and
Environmental Consuitants {(C.E.C.) of Franklin, TN, to provide professional engineering
services for this project, and

WHEREAS, the total project budget is $993,000 comprised of 95% in state funds
and 5% matching city funds, and

WHEREAS, the project is scheduled to be completed in August, 2020, and

WHEREAS, C.E.C. has proposed an estimated cost of $71,600 for their
professional engineering services for this project, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

The City of Fairview Board of Commissicners hereby resolves to and does approve the
contract proposed by Civil and Environmental Consultants, Inc. (C.E.C.) for the
professional engineering services on the Fairview Boulevard (SR-100) Sidewalk Addition,
state project numbers 94LPLM-S0-088, 94LPLM-S2-090 and 94LPLM-S3-091, PIN

123627.00.

Mayor

Attest:

City Recorder

Approved As To Form:

City Attorney




=
FE Fe
Fd 2
(A S g&i‘?f

- Clvil & Environmentat Consultants, nc.

April 27, 2018

Mr. Scott Collins

City Manager

City of Fairview

7100 City Center Way
Fairview, TN 37062

Dear Mr. Collins:

Subject: Proposal for Professional Services
Fairview Boulevard (SR-100) Sidewalk Addition
State Project Numbers; 94LPLM-S0-088, 94LPLM-52-090, and
94L.PLM-S53-091
Project Identification Number (PIN}): 123627.00
CEC Project Number 175-121

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc. (CEC) is pleased to provide the City of Fairview (City)
with this proposal to provide preliminary engineering, design phase, pre-bid phase, bid phase, and
construction engineering and inspection (CEI) professional services for the proposed sidewalk
along Fairview Boulevard (SR-100) in Fairview, Tennessee. Sidewalk is proposed along the east
side of Fairview Boulevard from Park Village Court to Bowie Lake Road {approximately 0.43
miles of sidewalk). The project also is proposed to provide accommodations within the project
limits for wheelchairs consistent with ADA standards.

Preparation of this proposal was based on the following:

¢ Grant Contract between the City of Fairview and the Tennessee Department of
Transportation (TDOT) dated August 17, 2016, describing the terms, conditions, and
budgets for the grant.
TDOT authorized the project o proceed into the Design Phase on November 13, 2017.
Tennessee Environmental Evaluation Report {TEER) completed and provided to CEC
by TDOT.

e Discussions with the City and TDOT regarding project details.

o Available aerial photography of the project area.

e Right-of-Way and/or easement acquisition will not be required for this project
consistent with the Tennessee Environmental Evaluation Report (TEER) dated
06/19/2017 provided by TDOT.

325 Seaboard Lane, Ssite 170 | Franklin, TN 37067 | p: 615-333-7797 f: 615-333-7751 | www.cacinz.com



Mr. Collins — City of Fairview
CEC Project 175-121

Page 2

April 27,2018

The following information provides scope of setvices, estimated costs, schedule, additional
services, and closing remarks. :

2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES

2.1 Task 0001 — Project Coordination Services

This task consists of general project management, administrative, and accounting activities for the
project, including up to four (4) project status / review meetings, preparing and distributing project
correspondence, scheduling of review meetings and activities, and discussion of project issues
throughout the project. CEC will also communicate with TDOT to monitor the project funds as
allocated in the City’s contract with TDOT for each phase of the project. Services will be
performed in accordance with the latest edition of the TDOT Local Government Guidelines for
the Management of Federal and State Funded Transportation Projects. Invoicing and payment for
services will be submitted by CEC to the City in accordance with TDOT guidelines.

2.2 Task 0002 — Surveving Services

CEC will perform a topographic survey within the project limits to use as base mapping ior the
proposed sidewalk design. The survey will be collected from Park Village Court to approximately
300 feet south of Bowie Lake Road. The width of survey within these limits will consist of the
western edge of existing pavement on Fairview Boulevard to twenty (20) feet east of the existing
right-of-way line on the east side of Fairview Boulevard.

Within these limits, the survey will consist of existing topography sufficient to generate 1’
contours, storm structure [ocations including size, type, and invert elevations, right-of-way
location, edge of existing pavement/curb, existing traffic infrastructure, above ground and/or
marked utility locations, and areas of existing landscaping, trees, and shrubbery. In addition, spot
elevations will be obtained every 25 feet along the painted white stripe on the east side of Fairview
Boulevard to approximate the tie-in to the existing roadway. CEC will perform one (1) site visit to
observe existing surveyed conditions and take photographs to document existing observed
conditions.

Utilities will be shown according to surface observations combined with plans and markings
provided by calling the Tennessee 811. It is CECs experience Tennessee 811 may not respond to
a request for markings unless excavation activities are involved. Tennessee 811 does not mark
utility lines or services on private property. The utilities shown will be located from field survey |
information and/or existing drawings. The surveyor makes no guarantee that the utilities located |
comprise all such utilities in the area, either in service or abandoned. The surveyor further does |
not warrant that the utilities located are in the exact location indicated although the surveyor does
certify that they are located as accurately as possible from information available. For utility lines
or service locations on private property, CEC can retain the services of a private underground
utility location service for an additional fee upon request.

Civil & Environmental Consultangs, Ine.



Mir. Collins — City of Fairview
CEC Project 173-121

Page 3

April 27, 2018

23 Task 0003 — Preliminary Design Services

This task will consist of development of preliminary design plans package, engineer’s opinion of
probable cost, preliminary special provisions, and preliminary submittal and review. The design
plan sheets will be prepared in conformance with TDOT’s standard plan sheets in size and design.
The design plans will conform to TDOT’s current design standards and Roadway Design
Guidelines. The preliminary plans will be prepared in 24” x 36” format and will consist of the

following;:
1. Title Sheet, Index Sheet, Legend, General Notes
2. Quantities Sheets
3. Details and Notes Sheets
4, Sidewalk Layout Sheets
5. Grading and Drainage Sheets
6. Erosion Control Sheets
7. Traffic Control Sheets
8. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

The preliminary design package will be provided to the City and TDOT for review and comment.
Three (3) hard copies and an electronic copy of the plans and opinion of probable construction
cost will be provided for review and comment. Once comments are received, CEC will address
comments and revise the design plans as necessary. Three (3) copies of the revised preliminary
design plans will be provided to the City and TDOT to proceed to the Construction Phase.

24 Task (004 — Final Design Services

Upon receipt of notice to proceed with the Construction Phase from TDOT, the Final Design Plans
package will be prepared. This task will consist of development of final design plans, final
engineer’s opinion of probable cost, and final special provisions based upon services provided in
Task 3. The final design package will be provided to the City and TDOT for review and comment.
Three (3) hard copies and an electronic copy of the plans and opinion of probable construction
cost will be provided for review and comment. Once comments are received, CEC will address
comments and revise the design plans as necessary. Three (3) copies of the signed and sealed final
construction design plans will be provided to the City and TDOT in preparation of TDQOT
providing authorization to receive bids.

2.5 Task 00035 — Pre-Bid and Bid Phase Services

CEC will prepare a Bid Book for the project in accordance with TDOT Office of Local Programs
standards. It is assumed that separate stand-alone technical specifications will not be prepared for
the project and that TDQOT specifications will be used, Technical specifications will only be
developed for items not covered by TDOT specifications, and this information will be included on
the plan sheets. The Bid Book will contain the Request for Proposals, the contract documents, bid
forms, disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE) requirements, specifications, required special

Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc.




Mr. Collins — City of Fairview
CEC Project 175-121

Page 4

April 27, 2018

provisions, and a half-sized plan set (11” x 17”). The Bid Book will be submitted to the TDOT
Office of Local Programs seeking approval and authorization for the City to proceed with bidding
the project. Upon receiving the Notice to Proceed with Construction from TDOT, CEC will
provide up to ten (10) copies of the plans and Bid Book to the City.

Upon receiving authorization from TDOT to receive bids, CEC will assist the City with drafting
the advertisement for bids and conduct one (1) pre-bid meeting with potential bidders. The City
will be responsible for advertising the bid in the necessary media. CEC will respond to questions
that arise during the bidding process and issue statements of clarification or bid addenda as
appropriate, CEC will be present for the bid opening and meet with the City following the bid
opening to assist with bid review. In addition, CEC will tabulate the bids received and evaluate the
compliance of the bids with the bidding documents and in accordance with TDOT Pelicy No. 355-
02, Awards of Construction Contracts. CEC will prepare a written summary of this tabulation and
evaluation and submit the bid tabulation and other required documentation to TDOT seeking
review and approval to award the contract to the lowest responsive bidder.

2.6 Task 0099 — Reimbursables

¢ Project reimbursables, including reproduction and travel costs, will be invoiced at cost plus
a 12% administrative fee.

e For the basis of this estimate, $3,000 has been assumed. Upon nearing the allowance
amount, CEC will contact you for authorization of additional fees, if additional costs are
required.

3.0 ESTIMATED COSTS

The estimated costs for providing professional services, as described above, are summarized
below. These costs are based on our current understanding of the anticipated effort. The scope of
services and costs may require adjustment as the project progresses, so the actual bilied amounts
may be more or less than those presented below.

Task 0001 Project Coordination Services $ 7,800
Task 0002 Surveying Services $ 14,700
Task 0003 Preliminary Design Services $ 26,200
Task 0004 Final Design Services $ 10,000
Task 0005 Pre-Bid and Bid Phase Services $ 9,900
Task 0099 Reimbursables $ 3,000
Total Estimated Cost $ 71,600

Invoicing of professional services will be based upon TDOT requirements for state funded projects
with an overhead rate of 145,00% and a net fee of 12%. Invoicing will follow TDOT standard
invoicing guidelines for state funded projects.

Civil & Eavironmental Cansultants, Ing.




Mr. Collins — City of Fairview
CEC Project 175-121

Page 5

April 27, 2018

OQur Schedule of Terms and Conditions, which apply to the proposed work, is attached. Any
changes to our Terms and Conditions must be agreed to in writing by both parties prior to

authorization to proceed. Your written authorization to proceed will form a binding contract and
indicates your acceptance of our Terms and Conditions.

40 SCHEDULE

CEC is available to begin work on this project immediately upon notice to proceed and will be
based on the following schedule:

I.  Surveying and Preliminary Design — 90 Days following Notice to Proceed from City

II.  Final Design — 60 Days following consolidated preliminary design comments

III.  Bid Bock Documents — 30 Days following consolidated final design comments

IV. Bid Phase Services — Beginning afier TDOT Notice te Proceed for Construction Phase

Please note that CEC has no control over internal TDOT review processes as they relate to
approvals and the issuances of notices to proceed from the Local Programs office.

5.0 ADDITIONAL SERVICES

The proposed scope of services and estimated costs presented do not include the following
services, which may be required as the project progresses, At your request, we can provide separate
proposals which include these additional services as their scope is defined:

Construction Engineering and Inspection (CEID) services: CEI services are not included in this
scope of services, Upon completion of Task 0004, CEC will provide the City with a scope of

services and associated fees based upon the Final Construction Plans.

Post-Construction Survey: CEC can perform survey of the site to document constructed facilities
for an additional fee.

6.0 CLOSING

CEC appreciates this opportunity to present this proposal to the City of Fairview for the
professional services. We are available to meet with you to discuss the scope of services, estimated
costs, or schedule outlined herein for completion of our professional services. We can modify the
proposed scope of services,

Civil & Eovironmentai Cansultanes, inc,




M, Collins — City of Fairview
CEC Project 175-121

Page 6

April 27,2018

if necessary, to accommodate specific constraints that may exist for this project. CEC looks
forward to working with you toward the successful completion of the project. Please do not hesitate
to contact us at 615-333-7797 should you have any questions, or if this proposal does not match

your intentions.
Sincerely,

CIVIL & ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS, INC.

A

effrey T. Duke, CPESC, PWS Kevin Blackbum, P.E., GISP

Principal Project Manager
Accepted:
Name and Title Date

Enclosure: CEC Terms & Conditions

Civil & Eavironmental Censultants, Ing,



SCHEDULE OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS
GEQTECHNICAL, CIVIL ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING SERVICES

1.0 PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE

The following terms and conditions ("TERMS") shall apply to and are an integral part of the attached
proposal between Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc. ("CEC") and the CLIENT named in the attached
proposal ("CLIENT"). CLIENT's acceptance of the proposal includes acceptance of the TERMS and any
terms and conditions proposed by the CLIENT will be deemed to materially alter the TERMS and are
hereby objected to and rejected by CEC. Acceptance of this proposal, including acceptance of the TERMS,
shall occur upon the notification of CEC by CLIENT, in writing or orally, to cemmence performance in
accordance with the proposal and the TERMS.

CEC shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided
by professionals, such as CEC, practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar
circumstances. There are no warranties provided whether express or implied.

2.0 SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS

The CLIENT recognizes that subsurface conditions may vary from those observed at locations where
borings, surveys, or explorations are made, and that site conditions may change with time. Data,
interpretation, and recommendations by CEC will be based solely on information available to CEC. CEC
is responsible for those data, interpretations, and recommendations, but will not be responsible for othet
parties' interpretations or use of the information developed.

3.0 SUBCONTRACTED SERVICES

CEC will select reputable subcontractors for test borings and/or other explorations or services based on oral
or written competitive prices. The contractot's invoices shall be bilied in accordance with our proposal.
Nothing in this paragraph shali require that services or equipment be obtained through competitive bidding
or be available from more than one source.

4.0 SITE ACCESS AND SITE CONDITIONS

CLIENT will grant or obtain free access to the site for all equipment and personnel for CEC to perform the
waork set forth in this AGREEMENT. The CLIENT will notify any and all pessessors of the project site
that CLIENT has granted CEC free access to the site. CEC will take reasonable precautions to limit damage
to the site, but it is understood by CLIENT that, in the normal course of work, some damage may occur and
the cortection of such damage is not part of this AGREEMENT unless so specified in the PROPOSAL.

CLIENT shall provide CEC with all information in CLIENT"s possession conceming the Project Site or
information which would materially affect performance of the work. CLIENT shall cooperate fully with
CEC and shalt timely provide CEC with all decisions, choices, criteria, or other determination necessary to
the prosecution of the work. CLIENT shall designate a Project Manager who shall act on CLIENT's behalf.




Schedule of Terms and Conditions
Geotechnical, Civil Engineering & Surveying Services
Page 2

The CLIENT is responsible for the accuracy of locations for all subterranean structures and utilities. CEC
will take reasonable precautions to avoid known subterranean structures, and the CLIENT waives any claim
against CEC, and agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold CEC harmless from any claim or liability for injuty
or loss, including costs of defense, arising from damage done to subterranean structures and utilities not
identified or accurately located. In addition, CLIENT agrees to compensate CEC for any time spent or
expenses incurred by CEC in defense of any such claim with compensation to be based upon CEC's
prevailing fee schedule and expense reimbursement policy.

5.0 SAMPLE DISPOSAL

CEC will dispose of all remaining soil and rock samples 60 days after submission of report covering those
samples. Further storage or transfer of samples can be made at CLIENT's expense upon CLIENT's prior
written request.

6.0 CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION

If CEC is retained by the CLIENT to provide a site representative for the purpose of observing specific
portions of the construction work as set forth in the PROPOSAL then this section applies.

For the specified assignment, CEC will report observations and professional opinions fo the CLIENT. No
action of CEC or CEC's site representative can be construed as altering any AGREEMENT between the
CLIENT and others. CEC will report any observed work to the CLIENT which, in CEC's professional
opinion, does not conform with plans and specifications. CEC has no tight to reject or stop work of any
agent of the CLIENT. Such rights are reserved solely for the CLIENT. Furthermore, CEC's presence on
the site does not in any way guarantee the completion ot quality of the performance of the work of any
party retained by the CLIENT to provide construction related services.

CEC will not be responsible for and will not have control or charge of specific means, methods, techniques,
sequences or procedures of construction selected by any agent or AGREEMENT of the CLIENT, or safety
precautions and programs incident thereto.

CEC disclaims any and all responsibility and liability for damages that resulf from implementation of CEC's
plans, specifications, or recommendations when CEC is not retained to observe such implementation,

7.0 BILLING AND PAYMENTS

7.1 General; Invoicing for labor will be performed in accordance with the provisions outlined in the
proposal to which these Terms and Conditions are a part. Invoices shall generally be submitted
every four weeks for services performed during the previous four weeks. Payment shall be due
within 30 days of invoice date. Payment shall be made as follows:

1. Lockbox (regular mail):
Civil & Envircninental Consultants, Inc,
P.O. Box 644246
Pittshurgh, PA 15264-4246



Schedule of Terms and Conditions
Geotechnical, Civil Engineering & Surveying Services

Pape 3

7.2

8.0

2. Electronic Payments:
Bank Wire Information:
Bank: PNC Bank
Pittsburgh, PA 15222

Account Name: Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc,
333 Baldwin Road
Pittsburgh, PA 15205

PNC Bank Routing #043000096 Bank telephone Number: 412-762-1836
Civil & Environmental Consultants, inc. — Account #2272405

If CLIENT cbjects to all or any portion of any invoice, CLIENT will so notify CEC in writing
within fourteen (14) calendar days of the invoice, identify the cause of disagreement, and pay within
thirty (30) days that portion of the invoice, if any, not in dispute. The parties will immediately
make every effort to settle the disputed portion of the invoice. In the absence of written notification
described above, the balance as stated on the invoice will be paid,

Invoices are delinquent if payment has not been received within thirty (30) days from date of
invoice. CLIENT will pay an additional charge of 1-1/2 (1.5) percent per month (or the maximum
percentage allowed by law, whichever is lower) on any delinquent amount, excepting any portion
of the invoiced amount in dispute and resolved in favor of CLIENT. Payment thereafter will first
be applied to accrued interest and then to the principal unpaid amount. All time spent and expenses
incurred (including any attorney's fees) in connection with collection of any delinquent amount will
be paid by the CLIENT to CEC per CEC's current fee schedules. In the event CLIENT fails to pay
CEC within thirty (30) days after invoices are rendered, CLIENT agrees that CEC will have the
tight to suspend this AGREEMENT, without incurring liability to CLIENT, after giving seven (7)
days written notice to CLIENT.

Litigation Services: If litigation services are not part of the proposal to which these Terms and
Conditions are attached and are requested by CLIENT, the scope and invoicing terms for the
requested litigation services will be identified in & separate proposal. The labot rate paid for senior
CEC personnel (project manager, senior project manager, principal, or officer) for direct litigation
support services shall generally be invoiced at a minimum rate of 1.5 times typical CEC rates, as
specified in a separate proposal for those services.

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

The following items of direct non-salary expenses shall be billed according to the terms of our proposal.

8.1
8.2

83
8.4
8.5

Transportation and living expenses incurred for assignments outside the area,

Automobile expenses for personal or company vehicles at the allowable IRS mileage rate, plus
parking and toll charges. For company vehicles, a minimum of $85/day will be charged for use,
unless the daily mileage charge for the vehicle in question exceeds $85/day, in which case the actual
daily mileage charge applies. Rental vehicles will be charged at cost.

Long distance telephone calls, felegrams, and cables,

Field survey equipment usage at $10.00/hr,

Computer usage and word processing at $5.00/hr. and CADD at $15.00/hr connect time.




Schedule of Terms and Conditions
Geotechnical, Civil Engineering & Surveying Services
Page 4

8.6 Shipping charges for soil and rock samples, field equipment, etc.
8.7 Project photographs and reproduction of drawings and reports.

B.B Test borings, laboratory services, and other subcontracted services.
8.9 Other items directly identifiable to the project.

Our proposal does not include gross receipts taxes, business or occupation taxes or assessments that the
municipality where the project is located may assess upon CEC or its subcontractors. If such taxes are or
becorme a liability of CEC, the CLIENT sgrees to reimburse CEC at cost. This tax cost reimbursement will
not be subject to mark-up.

9.0 TERMINATION

This AGREEMENT may be terminated by either party seven (7) days after written notice in the event of
any breach of any provision of this AGREEMENT or in the event of substantial failure of performance by
the other party, or if the CLIENT suspends the work for more than three (3) months. In the event of
termination, CEC will be paid for setvices performed prior to the date of termination plus reasonable
termination expenses, including the cost of completing analyses, records and report necessary to document
job status at the time of termination.

10.0 SAFETY

When CEC provides construction observation or management services on the job site during project
construction, it is understood that, in accordance with generally accepted practices, the contractor shall be
solely and completely responsible for working conditions on the job site, including safety of all persons and
property during the performance of the work and compliance with OSHA regulations, and that these
requirements will apply continuously and not be limited to nermal working hours. Any observations of the
contractor's performance conducted by our personnel will not include review of the adequacy of the
contractor's safety measures in, on or near the construction site.

11.0 INSURANCE

CEC will maintain Workmen's Compensation Insurance as required by state law and General Liability
Insurance for bodily mjury and property damage with an aggregate limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence.
CEC will furnish certificates of such insurance upon request. In the event the CLIENT desires additional
coverage of this type CEC will, upon the CLIENT's written request, obtain additional insurance (if possible)
at the CLIENT's expense. Our liability to the CLIENT for bodily injury or property damage arising out of
work performed for the CLIENT for which legal liabilifty may be found to rest upon us, other than for
professional errors or omissions, shall be limited to our General Liability Insurance coverage.

120  ALLOCATION OF RISK

12.1  Limitation of Remedies: Subject to all otherwise applicable statutes of [imitations and repose,
CLIENT agrees to limit CEC's liability to CLIENT, and to any other person or entity, for any claim
arising from, or alleged to arise from any acts, errors or omissions in the performance of services
under this AGREEMENT whether such claim sounds in negligence, breach of contract, strict
liability, or other legal theory, except for willful misconduct or gross negligence and including any
legal fees ot costs awarded under this AGREEMENT, to an aggregate limit of the amount of fees
paid to CEC under this AGREEMENT, or $50,000, whichever is greater.




Schedule of Terms and Conditions
Geotechnical, Civil Engineering & Surveying Services
Page 5

[f CLIENT prefers not to limit our professional liability to this sum, we shall waive this limitation
upon CLIENT’s written request, provided that CLIENT agrees to pay for this waiver at a negatiated
fee. CLIENT’s request for this option must be made at the time CLIENT accepts our proposal. In
the event CLIENT makes a claim against us for any act arising out of the performance of our
professional services, and fails to prove such claim, then CLIENT agrees to pay all legal and other
costs incutred by us in defense of such claim,

122  Waiver of Consequential Damages: CEC and CLIENT agree to waive any claim against each other
for consequential damages.

123 Indemnification: CEC shall indemnify and hold harmless CLIENT from and against any and all
claims, damages, or liability arising from the neglipent performance of services under this
AGREEMENT by CEC, including injuries to employees of CEC.

12.4  Continuing Agreement: The obligations of this section shall survive notwithstanding termination
of this AGREEMENT. In the event that CLIENT requests that CEC provide additional services,
CLIENT's obligations under this section shall apply to such additional services as if such additional
services had to be performed as part of this AGREEMENT.

13.0 DISCOVERY OF UNANTICIPATED HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

CLIENT wartants that a reasonable effort to inform CEC of known or suspected Biological Pollutants or
Hazardous Materials on or near the project site has been made by the CLIENT. The term "Biological
Pellutants” includes, but is not limited to, molds, fungi, spores, bacteria, and viruses, and the by-product of
any such biological organisms. The term Hazardous Materials shall mean any foxic substances, chemicals,
pollutants, or other materials, in whatever form or state, including but not limited to smoke, vapors, soot,
fumes, acids, alkalis, minerals, toxic chemicals, hquids, gases or any other material, irritant, contaminant
or pollutant, that is known or suspected to adversely affect the health and safety of humans or of animal or
plant organisms, or which are known or suspected to impair the environment in any way whatsoever and
shall include, but not be limited to, those substances defined, designated, or listed in Section 404 of the
Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC Subsection 6903); Section 9601(14) of the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 USC Subsection 9601{14); as listed or
designated under Sections 1317 and 1321(b)}2){(a) of the Title 33 (33 USC Subsections 1317 and
1321(b)}2)a)) or as defined, desighated, or listed under any other federal, state, or local law, regulation or
ordinance concerning hazardous wastes, toxic substances, or pollution.

Hazardous Materials may exist at a site where there is no reason to believe they could or should be present.
CEC and CLIENT agtee that the discovery of unanticipated Hazardous Materials constitutes a changed
condition mandating a renepotiation of the scope of work ot termination of services. CEC and CLIENT
also agree that the discovery of unanticipated Hazardous Materials may make it necessary for CEC to take
immediate measures to protect health and safety, CLIENT agrees to compensate CEC for any equipment
decontamination ot other costs meident to the discovery of unanticipated hazardous waste.




Schedule of Terms and Conditions
Geotechnical, Civil Engineering & Surveying Services
Page €

CEC agrees to notify CLIENT when unanticipated Hazardous Materials or suspected Hazardous Materials
are encountered. CLIENT agrees to make any disclosures required by law to the approptiate governing
agencies. CLIENT also agrees to hold CEC harmless for any and all consequences of disclosures made by
CEC which are required by governing law. In the event the project site is not owned by CLIENT, CLIENT
recognizes that it is the CLIENT's responsibility to inform the property owner of the discovery of
unanticipated Hazardous Materials or suspected Hazardous Materials.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the AGREEMENT, CLIENT waives any claim against CEC, and
to the maximum extent permitted by law, agrees to defend, indemnify, and save CEC harmless from any
claim, liability, and/or defense costs for injury or loss arising from CEC's discovery of unanticipated
Biological Pollutants, Hazardous Materials or suspected Hazardous Materials including any costs
associated with possible reduction of the property's value. CLIENT will be responsible for ultimate disposal
of any samples secured by CEC which are found to be contaminated.

140 CHANGES
14.1  Unforeseen Site Conditions: CLIENT reserves the right to make reasonable changes in the work

to be performed after acceptance of this AGREEMENT. CLIENT understands that unforeseen site
conditions may require changes in the Scope of Work to be performed.

142  Unauthorized Changes; If changes are made in CEC work products by CLIENT or persons other
than CEC, and these changes affect our work, any and all liability against CEC arising out of such
changes is waived and you assume full responsibility for such changes unless you have given us
prior notice and have received from us written consent for such changes.

143  CLIENT Requested Changes: Upon receipt of a change requested by CLIENT, CEC will obtain
price quotaticns from the contractors and shall provide CLIENT with a quotation of the cost of
having the change performed, and any increase in confract time caused by the change. CLIENT
shall authorize the requested change by amending the contract price and contract time.

15.0 MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION

15.1  Scope of Clause: Any claim arising out of or related to this AGREEMENT, except claims which
are specifically excluded from mediation and arbitration as set forth in the "Exclusions” paragraph
of this section of the AGREEMENT, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to
arbitration or the institution of legal or equitable proceedings by either party. With the exception
of the claims set forth in the “Exclusions™ paragraph of this section of the AGREEMENT, the
mediation and arbitration provisions of this section shall apply to any and all disputes between
CLIENT and CEC which arise from or which are in any way related to this AGREEMENT,
including, but not limited to, the interpretation of this AGREEMENT, the enforcement of its terms,
and any acts, errors, or omissions of CEC in the performance of this AGREEMENT.

152  Notice of Dispute: Within forty-five (45) days of the occurrence of any incident, action, or failure
to act upon which a claim for relief is based, the party seeking relief shall serve the other party with
. a written notice specifying the nature of the relief sought, the amount of relief sought, a description
of the reason relief should be granted, and a citation of the appropriate portions of this
AGREEMENT that authorize the relief requested. The Notice of Dispute requirement under this
paragraph does not pertain to the claims excluded from mediation and arbitration as described in

the "Exclusions" paragraph of this section of the AGREEMENT.




Schedule of Terms and Conditions
Geotechnical, Civil Engineering & Surveying Services

Page 7

153

15.4

155

15.6

15.7

15.8

Meet and Confer: Within ten (10) days of receipt of the Notice of Dispute, the parties shall meet
and confer in a good faith attempt to resolve the dispute. Participants in the meet and confer must
have the authority to enter into a resolution on behalf of each party. Attorneys representing the
parties may not be present at this meeting. The Meet and Confer requirement under this paragraph
does not pertain to the claims excluded from mediation and arbitration as described in the
*Exclusions” paragraph of this section of the AGREEMENT.

If, as a result of the parties having met and conferred, an agreement is reached resolving the dispute,
the parties shall immediately execute an addendum to this AGREEMENT setting forth the terms
of their agreement.

Facilitated Mediation: If no agreement is reached, or if the agreement does not resolve all of the
issues encompassed by the Notice of Dispute, the parties shall resolve their claims by mediation
which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be in accordance with the Construction
Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association currently in effect. Request for
mediation shall be filed in writing with the other party to this AGREEMENT and the American
Arbitration Association, The Request for Mediation may be made concurrently with the filing of
a demand for arbitration bui, in such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of arbitration or
legal or equitable proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of sixty (60)
days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court
order,

Fees and Location: The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The
mediation shall be held in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, unless another location is mutually agreed
upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court
having jutisdiction thereof.

Arbitration: Prior to arbitration, the parties shall endeavor to resolve disputes by mediation in
accordance with the paragraphs set forth above. Claims not resolved by mediation shall be decided
by arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be in accordance with the
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association cutrently in
effect. Demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other party to this AGREEMENT
and with the American Arbitration Association.

Demand for Arbiiration: A demand for arbitration shall be made within a reasonable time after the
claim has arisen, and in no event shall it be made after the date when institution of legal or equitable
proceedings based on such claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations.

Limitation on Consolidation or Joinder: Except by written consent of the person or entity sought
to be joined, no arbitration arising out of or relating to this AGREEMENT shall include, by
consolidation or joinder or in any other manner, any person or entity not a party to this
AGREEMENT under which such arbitration arises, unless it is shown at the time the demand for
arbiiration is filed that (1) such person or entity is substantially involved in a common question of
fact or law, (2) the presence of such person or entity is required if complete relief is to be accorded
in the arbitration, and (3) the interest or responsibility of such persen or entity in the matter is not
insubstantial, This agreement to arbitrate and any other written agreement to arbitrate with an
additional person or persons referred to herein shall be specifically enforceable under applicable
faw in any court having jurisdiction thereof.




Schedule of Terms and Conditions :
Geotechnical, Civil Engineering & Surveying Services

Page 8

15.9

15.10

15.11

1512

15.13

16.0

Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims: The party filing a notice of demand for arbitration nuust
assert in the deruand all claims then known to that party on which arbitration is permitted to be
demanded.

Judgment on Final Award: The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and
judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction
thereof,

Non-Admissibility and Confidentiality: The Meet and Confer and the Facilitated Mediation are
conducted under the provision that evidence may not be introduced at any later proceeding of any
communication, statement, document provided, expert opinion, expert report, or offer fo
compromise unless such was made, provided, or disposed outside of, and not in connection with,
the Meet and Confer or Facilitated Mediation. Under no circumstances may the mediator, or any
documents created or maintained by the mediation, be subpoenaed, nor shall the mediator testify
in any subsequent proceedings.

All communications, statements, documents provided, expert opinions, expert reports, or offers to
compromise are confidential and may not be disclosed without the written consent of the party
making the statement or offering the information.

Cross-Claims: If a party contends that all or part of a claim described in the Notice of Dispute is
offset by a cross-claim, or if a party contends that it has a claim which arises out of the same factors
upon which the Notice of Claim is based, the party must, within seven days after receipt of the
Notice of Claim, provide a written Notice of Cross-claim setting forth the same information as
required in a Notice of Claim. The cross-claim shall be resolved in the Meet and Confer or the
Facilitated Mediation in the same manner as the claim described in the Notice of Dispute.

Any agreement reached in the Meet and Confer or the Facilitated Mediation shall bar the later
assertion in any action, erbitration, or other proceeding of any cross-claim which was required to
be asserted by this section unless the parties’ written resolution agreement explicitly reserves such
cross-claim.

Exclusions: The mediation and arbitration provisions of this section do not apply to claims which
arise out of or relate to disputes between CEC and CLIENT conceming amounts owed CEC for
performance of services and/or disputes between CEC and CLIENT concerning the payment of
CEC('s invoices as provided in the "Billing and Payments” section of this AGREEMENT. Rather,
CEC and CLIENT agree that any court of record of Allegheny County, Pennsylvania, shall have
jurisdiction and venue over any claims excluded from mediation and arbitration as provided herein.

GOVERNING LAW AND SURVIVAL

The law of the State of Pennsylvania will govern the validity of these TERMS, their interpretation and
performance.

If any of the provisions contained in this AGREEMENT are heid illega!, invalid, or unenforceable, the
enforceability of the remaining provisions will not be impaired. Limitations of liability and indemnities
will survive termination of this AGREEMENT for any cause.




Schedule of Terms and Conditions
Geotechnical, Civil Engineering & Surveying Services
Page 9

17.0  DESIGN/BUILD SERVICES

If Client requests CEC-led design-build services, those design-build services will be performed in
accordance with separate terms and conditions that specifically address design-build services.

15.0 BIOLOGICAL POLLUTANTS

CEC’s scope of services does not include the investigation or detection of the presence of any Biological
Pollutants in or around any structure. CLIENT agrees that CEC will have no liability for any claim
regarding bodily injury or property damage alleged fo arise from or be caused by the presence of or exposure
to any Biological Pollutants, in or around any structure. In addition, CLIENT will defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless Consultant from any third party claim for damages alleged to arise from or be caused by the
presence of or exposute to any Biological Pellutants in or around any structure, except for damages arising
from or caused by CEC’s sole negligence.

19.0 CONSENT TO ASSIGN

CLIENT and CEC, respectively, each binds itself and its successors and assigns fo the other and its
successors and assigns with respect to all covenants of these TERMS. Neither CLIENT nor CEC shall
assign, sublet or transfer any rights under or interest in these TERMS without the ptior written consent of
the other party, including, but not limited to (a) any interest in the proceeds of these TERMS, or any
proceeds of claims atising from or under these TERMS; (b) any claims, causes of action or rights against
the other party arising from or under these TERMS; (c) the control of elaims or causes of action against the
other party arising from or under these TERMS; and {(d) any proceeds from claims or causes of action as
security, collateral, or the source of payment for any notes or liabilities to any third party. This section shall
not, however, apply to any subrogation rights (if any) of any insurer of either party. This section shall
survive the completion or termination of these TERMS for amy reason and shall remain enforceable between
parties.

20.0 FILE RETENTION
After this project is concluded, our file on the project will be closed. All documents and information within
the project file will be retained by CEC, and may be sent offsite for storage. Unless you make other

arrangements with us, CEC reserves the right to destroy all file information seven (7) years after the project
is closed.

END OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS

REVISED January 2013 GEO.T&C




10-20-11 AMEND-G

AMENDMENT ONE
OF GRANT CONTRACT 160087, PIN #123627.00

This Grant Contract Amendment is made and entered by and between the Siate of Tennessee,
Department of Transportaticn, hereinafter referred lo as the “State” and City of Fairview, hereinafter

referred to as the "Grantea.” It is mutually understood and agreed by and between said, undersigned
contracting parties that the subject Grant Contract is hereby amended as follows:

1. Grant Contract section B.1. is deleted in its entiretyand replaced with the following:

“B. CONTRACT PEﬁiOD

B.1.  This Grant Contract- shall be effectwe from the perlod beginning August 10, 2016, and
-ending August 9. 2020. The Agency shall provide the Départment with the documents,
ertifications and clearances necessary to obtain the Department's Notice to Proceed to
the ConstructionPhase by February.9, 2019. If the Agéncy does not prowde the
~ Department; with.the documents, certifications and clearantes necessary to. obtazn the
Department‘s Notice to Proceed to the Construction Phasé by the aforesaid date, then

" the Department may terminate this Agreement. The Agency hereby acknow!edges and
i 1)l bligation for. Agency servlces or- expenditures
d.”

Reguzred Aggroval Ahe” :
parties and approvad by appropriate oﬁlczals in accordance with applzcabte Tennessee laws and’
i niract, said, officials may inc ude but are not - -

._.Amendment Effective Date. The revisions se

herein shall be effective
A]I cther lerms and conditions of this Grant Cc

not expressly amended herein shall remal

INWITNESS WHEREOF, ..

CITY-OF.FAIRVIEW :

PATTI L. CAR 'LL;‘MA?&)R

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF AGENCY SIGNATORY {abo




APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

10-20-11 AMEND-G

AGENCY ATTORNEY

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTAT

JOHN REINBOLD, GENERAL COUNSEL

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY




CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE

RESOLUTION NO.__13-18

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, &::
AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT 160087, PIN 123627.00 BETWEEN THE STATE
OF TENNESSEE AND THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A
SIDEWALK ALONG FAIRVIEW BOULEVEARD (SR-100) BETWEEN BOWIE LAKE
ROAD AND PARK VILLAGE COURT.

WHEREAS, the current contract 160087, PIN 123627.00 specifies that the notice
to proceed to the construction phase of this project shall be obtained by the city on or
before August 10, 2018, and

WHEREAS, the state has agreed to grant the city an amendment to this contract
such that pursuant to said amendment the city has until February 9, 2019, to obtain the
notice to proceed to the construction phase of this project, and

WHEREAS, the original contract specifies that this project be completed by August
9, 2020, and

WHEREAS, this amendment does not extend the project completion date, and
state and the city’s project engineer agree that the amendment extending the notice to
proceed to the construction phase of the project will not affect the project completion date,

and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

The City of Fairview Board of Commissioners hereby resolves to and does approve
Amendment 1 of grant contract 160087, PIN 123627.00, extending until February 9, 2019,
the date for the city to obtain a notice to proceed to the construction phase of this project.

Mayor

Attest:

City Recorder

Approved As To Form:

City Attorney




30-20-11 AMEND-G

AMENDNENT ONE
OF GRANT CONTRACT 1600487, PIN #123627.00

This Grant Contract Amendment is made and entered by and between the State of Tennessee,
Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the “State” and City of Fairview, hereinafter
referred to as the "Grantee.” itis mutually understood and agreed by and between said, undersigned
conhtracting parties that the subject Grant Contract is hereby amended as follows:

1. Grant Contract section B.1, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“B. CONTRACT PERIOD:

B.1.  This Grant Contract shall be effective from the period beginning August 10,2016, and
ending August 9, 2020, The Agency shall provide the Department with the documents,
certifications and clearances necessary to obtain the Department's Notice to Proceed to
the Construction Phase by February 9, 2019. If the Agency does not provide the
Department with the documents, cerfifications and clearances necessary to obtain the
Deparlment's Notice to Proceed to the Construction Phase by the aforesaid date, then
the Department may terminate this Agreement. The Agency hereby acknowiedges and
affirms that the Depariment shait have no obligation for Agency services or expenditures
that were not completed within this specified contract period.”

3 gu;[ed Approvals. ' The State.is not bound by this Amendment until it is signed by the contract
parties and approved by appropriate officials in accordance with applicable Tennessee laws and
regulations (depending upon the specifics of this contract, said officials may include, but are not
limited to, the Commissioner of Finance and Administraticn, the Commissioner of Human
Resources, and the Comptroller of the Treasury).

4 Amendment Effective Date. The revisions set forth hereinh shall be effective
All other terms and conditions of this Grant Contract not expressly amended herein shall remain

in full force and effect.

iN WITNESS WHEREOF,

CITY OF FAIRVIEW

PATTI L. CARROLL, MAYOR " DATE

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF AGENCY SIGNATORY (above)



10-20-11 AMEND-G

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

AGENCY ATTCRNEY

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

JOHN SCHROER, COMMISSIONER _ - DATE

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

JOHN REINBOLD, GENERAL COUNSEL
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY




PYRO SHOWS

MATERIAL CONTRACT
STATE of TENNESSEE
COUNTY of CAMPBELL

THIS AGREEMENT made this 8" Day of May, 2018 by and between PYRO SHOWS, inc., a Tennessee corporation
with its principal place of business at P.O. Box 1776, LaFolietie, State of Tennessee (heteinafter PYRO SHOWS),
and CITY OF FAIRVIEW, with its principal place of business at 7100 City Center VWay, Fairview, State of Tennesses,
hereinafter refarred to as the "Custamer”.

in cansideration of the mutual promise and undertakings set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. DESCRIPTION AND QUANTITY: Customer hereby orders the foilowing products in the specified quantities at
the indicated prices:

Type-Firewarks Special Class " B" or 1.3G

Fragram #: 18 TN 07-03-M-7500-000425
Display Dates;  July 3, 2018
Tolals: $7,500.00 plus tax {if appl.) Customer shall submit a 50% deposit ($3,750.00) upon

return of signed contract, Balance due day of the show or upon receipt of package show,

2. DEUVERY AND RISK OF LOSS: The material shall be delivered to Customer at Customer's expense pursuant
to the proposal. Risk of loss shall pass to Customer as soen as FYRO SHOWS places the material as the indicated.
3. PAYMENT: The method of paymentis by check and payabls to PYRO SHOWS.
4, COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND REGULATIONS: In the event that Customer intends to use the material
govamed by this Agreement in & place or in a manner in which approval is required by any laws, regulations, codes
or ordinances, Customer shall apply for the approval to the appropriate agency, officer, or authority promptly upon
the execution of this Agreement and shall provide PYRO SHOWS with a capy of the permif, licanse or other approval
so obtained. Customer shall net use the matenal until all required approval is actually received. Customer has
received an exact replica of NFPA 1123-10 and will abide by all freworks safety codes.
5. WARRANTY EXCLUSION: Customer understands that PYRO SHOWS is not the manufacturer of the material
governed by this Agreement.
THIS IS NO WARRANTY BY PYRO SHOWS THAT ANY OF THE MATERIAL HEREIN SOLD IS MERCHANTABLE OR FIT
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. SUCH GOODS ARE SOLD "AS 13,” CUSTOMER iS NOT RELYING UPON ANY
REFPRESENTATION, STATEMENT OR ANY OTHER ASSERTION WITH RESPECT TO THIS NATURE CF QUALITY OF
THE MATERIAL SOLD HEREIN., CUSTOMER IS RELYING SOLELY UPON |ITS EXAMINATION AND ITS TESTING OF
SUCH MATERIAL. NO CLAIM OF ANY KIND, WHETHER AS TO MATERIAL DELIVERED OR FOR NONDELIVERY OF
MATERIAL, SHALL BE GREATER IN AMOUNT THAN THE PURCHASE OF THE MATERIAL IN RESPECT OF WHICH
SUCH CLAIM IS MADE. IN NG EVENT SHALL PYRO SHOWS BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS OF PROFITS OR OTHER
ECONOMIC L.OSS, INDIRECT, SFECIAL, AND CONSEQUENTIAL OR OTHER SIMILAR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF ANY
CLAIMED BREACH OF OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this agreement is execuied in duplicate the date shown above.,

PYRO SHOWS, inc.

BY: BY:
Michael E. Walden AS CUSTOMER

DATE: , 2018 DATE , 2018

The undersigned individuat (hereinefter calfed the "Guarantor') unconditionally guarantees all of the obligations entered inta
by the Customer in the contract between CITY OF FAIRVIEW, Customer and PYRO SHOWS, dated May 9, 2018. The
guarantor agrees that if the Customer defaults he will pay alf sums due to and owing under contract, including al! cost of
colleclion and reasonable attorney's fees. He agrees to unconditionally guarantee all of the obligations entered into by the
Customer as if he were the Customer in the eyent Customer defaulls or fails {o pay the agreed contract price.

IN WITNESS whereof, this the day of : , 2018,

SIGNATURE OF GUARANTOR SIGNATURE OF GUARANTOR

RESIDENCE ADDRESS RESIDENCE ADDRESS




P o

"

i

EHTREME LIGHTING & SOUND

1367 Fairview Boulevard, Fairview, TN 37&5
Phone: 615-266-5236 Fax: 615-266-5241
admin@extremelightingandsound.com

EVENT PRODUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Contracl for Services is made clTective as of May dth, 2018 by and beiween City of Fairview, TN
("COF"} of 7t00 City Cenler Way, Fairview. Tennessee 37062, and Extreme Lighting & Sound, LLC
("ELS") ol 1367 Fairview Bhvd, Fairview, Tennessee 37062

1. DESCRIPTLON OF SERVICES., Beginning on May 4th, 2018, ELS will provide to COF the
following scrvices (collectively, the "Services"):

Event planning and all production scrvices for the musical enteriainment portion of the City of Fairview
Suly 3rd Celebration on 07/03/2018. This includes emcee services, artist booking & relations. logistics.
and all staging, rigging, lighling, audio, video, and porable power distribution required by our design and
at our sole discretion. Generators, feeder cables, cable ramps, barriers, prounds keeping or restoration, and
clean-up after the show shall be by the COF.

2. PAYMENT., Paymen( shall be madc to Extreme Lighting & Sound, LLC, Fairview, Tennessce 37062,
in the amount of $12.000.00 upon completion of the services described in this Contraet. Price quoted is a
*Guaraniced Maximum" amount- final invoice may be fess depending on final costs, but in no case shall

exceed this amount. Invoices arc duc on receipl,

It shall be understood that this is an outdoor production and will go on *rain or shine™ In the cvent this
show is not presented because of inclement weather or other safets concerns, and ELS and Artists are
present and ready to perform, COF must pay ELS in {ull regardless.

Inn addition to any other right or remedy provided by faw, if COF fails to pay for the Services when due,
ELS has the option to lreat such failure lo pay as a material breach of this Contract and may cancel this
Contract and/or seek legal remedies. COF shall pay alt costs of collection, including without limitation,
reasonablo attornoy fees.

3. TERM. This Conlract will terminatc muomaticatly upon completion by ELS of the Services required
by this Coniract.

4, CONFIDENTIALITY. ELS, and its employces, agents, or representatives will not at any time or in
any manner, cither directhy or indircctly, use for the personal benefit of ELS, or divulge, disclose, or
communicaic in any manner, any information that is proprictary to COF, ELS and its employees. agents,
and representatives will protect such information and treat it as strictly conflidential. This provision will
continue o be effective after the termination of (his Contracl. Any oral or written waiver by COF of these
confidentiality obligations which allows ELS to disclose COF's confidential information to a third party
will be limited (o a single oscurrence tied to the specific information disclosed to the speetlic third party,
and the confidentiality clause will continue to be in cffect [or all other occurrences.




)

ERTREME LIGHTING & SOURD

1367 Fairview Boulevard, Fairview, TN 37062
Phone: 615-266-5236 Fax: 615-266-5241
admin@extremelightingandsound.com

5. WARRANTY, ELS shall provide its services and meet its obligations under this Contract in a timely
and workinaniike manner, using knowledge and recommendations [or perlorming the services which
meet generally acceptable standards in ELS's community and region, and will provide a standard of care
equal to, or superior to, care used by service providers similar to ELS on similar projects.

6. DEFAULT. The occurrence ol any of the following shall constitute a matenal delault under this
Contract:

a. The (ailure (0 make a required payinent when due.
b. The msolvency or bankruptey of ctiher party.
C. The subjection ol any ol cither party's property to any fevy, scizure, general assignment for the

benelil ef creditors, application or salc [or or by any creditor or government agency.

d. The failure to make avaifable or deliver the Services in the {ime and manner provided for in this
Contract.

7. REMEDIES. In addition to any and all other rights a party may have available according to law, if a
party delaults by failing to substantially perform any provision, term or condition of this Contract
(including without limitation the lailure to make a monetary paymen{ whea due), the other party may
terminaic the Contract by providing written nolice (o the defaulting party. This notice shall describe with
sulTicient detail the nature of (he defaull. The party receiving such notice shall have 3 days from the
clfective date of such notice to cure the delauli(s). Unless waived in writing by a party providing notice,
the failure to cure the defauli(s) within such time period shall result 111 the automalic termination of this
Contract.

8. FORCE MAJEURE. if performance of this Contract or any oblipation under this Contract is
prevented, restricicd, or interfered with by causes beyond cither party’s reasonable control ("Foree
Majeurc™), and if’ the party unable to carry oul its obligations gives the other party prompt wriften or, in
ihc case of mclement wealher, a safety issue, or other sudden or unforeseen cvent, verbal notice of such
event, then the obligations of the party invaking Lhis provision shall be suspended to the extent necessary
by such event, The term Force Majeure shall include, withaut limitation, acts of God, fire, explosion,
vandalism, storm or other similar occurrence, orders or acts of wilitary or civil authority, or by national
emergencies, insurrections, riots, or wars, or strikes, lock-ouls, work stoppages. The excused party shall
use reasonable efforts under the circumstances (o avoid or remove such causes ol non-performance and
shall proceed to perform with reasonable dispatch whenever such causes are removed or ceased. An act or
omnzission shall be deemed within the reasonable control of a party il conumiticd, omiffed, or caused by
such party, or its employees. officers. agents, or allihates.




5

FA

EHTREME LIGHTING & SOURD

1367 Fairview Boulevard, Fairview, TN 37062
Phone: 615-266-5236 Fax: 615-266-5241
admin@extremelightingandsound.com

9, DISPUTE RESOLUTION, The partics will attempt to resolve any dispute out of or relating to this
Agreement through friendly negotialions amongst the partics. If the matter is not resolved by negotiation,
the partics witl resolve the dispute using the below Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) procedure.

Any controversics or disputes arising out of or relaling 10 this Agrecment will be submilted to mediation
it accordance with any statulory rules of mediation. If mediation is not successtul in resolving the entire
dispulc or is unavailable, any outstanding issues will be submitled to final and binding arbitration under
the rules of the American Arbilration Assaciation. The arbitrator's award will be final, and judgment may
be entered upon il by any court having proper jurisdiction,

10, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Contract contains ihe entire agreement of the parties, and there are no
other promises or conditions in any olher agreement whether oral or writlen concerning the subject matter
of this Conlract, This Conlract supersedes any prior written or oral agreements between the parties.

11, SEVERABILITY. Il any provision of this Contract will be held 1o be invalid or unenforceable lor
any reason, the remaining provisions will continue to be valid and enforceable. If a court finds that any
provision of this Contract is invalid or uncnflorceable, but that by limiting such provision it would become
valid and enforceable, then such provision will be deemed to be written, construed, and enlorced as so
himited.

12. AMENDMENT, This Coniract may be modified or amended in writing by mulual agrecment
between the partics. il the wriling is signed by the parly obligated under the amendment.

13. GOVERNING LAW. This Conlract shall be construed in accordance with {he laws of the State of

Tennessee,
14. NOTICE, Any notice or communication required or permitted under this Contract shall be

sulficiently given il delivered in person or by certilied mail, return receipt requested, to the address set
forth in the opening paragraph or to such other address as one party may have furnished lo the other in
wrifing,

15. WAIYER OF CONTRACTUAL RIGHT. The failure of cither parly {o enforce any provision of
(his Contract shall not be construed as a waiver or limitation of that party's right to subscquently enforce
and compel sirict compliance with every provision of this Contract.

16, ATTORNEY'S FEES TQ PREVAILING PARTY. In any action arising hereunder or any separate
action pertaining to the validity of this Agreement, the provailing party shall be awarded reasonable
attorney’s lees and costs, both in the trial court and on appeal.



F1 4

EHTREME LIGHTING & SOUND

1367 Fairview Boulevard, Fairview, TN 37062
Phone: 615-266-5236 Fax: 615-266-5241
admin@extremelightingandsound.com

17. CONSTRUCTION AND INTERPRETATION., The rule requiring coustruction or interpretation
apainst Lhe drafter s waived, The documeat shall be deemed as 1T 1§ were drafted by both parties in a
mutual cflorl.

[N WITNESS WHEREQF, the partics hercio have caused (his Agrcement to be executed Ly their duby
authorized representatives as ol the date [irst above written. Brandy Johnson, City Recorder or other
authorized parly for City of Fairview, TN, and Gienn Grundberg, SrVP/COQ lor Extreme Lighling &
Sound, LLC, effective as of the date first above wrillen.

Scrvice Recipient:
Cuy of Fairview, TN

By

Prinl Nanie;

Service Provider:
Exireme Lighting & Sound, LL.C

D AN D

Glenn Grundberg




ADDENDUMD
TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN WiLLIAMSONCOUNTY, §

THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW FOR THE PROVISION OF

THIS ADDENDUM is made by and between WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE {"County"}, a county governmental

entity of the State of Tennessee located at 1320 West Main Street, Franldln, Tennessee 37064, on behalf of the Williamson County
Highway Department ("Highway Departinent”), and the CITY OF FAIRVIEW ("City"}, 3 municipal government located at 7100 City
Center Circle, Failview, Tennessee 37062, to extend the tertns and conditions of the original Intertocal Agreement (“Agreement”™)
regarding assistance and reimbursement for maintenance of municipal roads located within the established boundoary of the Cily.

WHEREAS as Tennessee local governments, the parties, upen approval of their respective legislative bodies, have the

aithority te enter inwm agreements for the joint cooperation 1n the provision of public services;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 54-7-202, the Highway Deparunent is authovized ko perform

road work fur ether governmental eatities if authortzed by the County's legislative body and if the cest for
the work is reimbursed to the Highway Depariment;

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Addendum is to extend the Agreement for an additional one (1) year terin;

WHEREA.S‘, the curvent term of the Agreement shall terminate on June 30, 2018 if the partics de not agree to extend the

Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed to cantinue to be bound by alf previsions of the Agreement for the additional term:

In consideration of the wwtual covenants herein contained, and other good and valuabie consideration, the receipt and

sulliciency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties du hereby agree as follows:

2.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE A5 FOLLOWS:

The parties have agreed to exercise the option to extend the Agreement for an additionzl one (1]} year term as provided
in the Agreement and made a part of the Agreement, "The current term of the Agreement shall contnue on July 1, 2008
without interruption and shatl terminate on june 30, 2019 unless otherwise terminated or extended by wriden
agreement of the parties. The parties have the ability to extend the Agreement for additional terms of one {1} year
each upon written agreement of the parties The option to extend shall be exercised and in the discretion of the
Williansson County Mayer, To be effectlve, any extension must be approved by the Couuty's Altorney and the
Wiiliamson Coutity Highway Superintendent and signed by the Williamson County Mayor. [n e event shall the term of
the Agreement extend beyond the maximum period provided Ly law,

All extensions are subject Lo and conditioned on the parties’ legistative bodies appropriating funds required to fulfill
the obligations contained in the Agreement.

‘The person of contact for the Williamson County Highway Departiment shall be the Highway Superintendent and the
person of contact for the City shall be the City Manager. All other terms included in the Agrecment which de not
condlict with this Addendum shall remain in effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREQFR, the parties hereto have coused this Addendum te be executed by their duly authorized

representatives on this the day of , 2018,
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TENNESSGE: CITY OF FAIRVIEW:
Regers Anderson, Williamson County Mayar Signature

Edtlie Hond, Highway Superintendent Title

Nena Grahain, Budget Divector

(X

Williamson County Attorney ©

vl ljupson Easuiyyapreringmghinlerioeal Agrepaien Yy al lnlrview\Malntenaisce to Municipal Roads\EN LAY 2018,04, 10 Addersdwi 11 (o KN 14 16003 Fafryfew Noads Ki 1B:

Lithilpn




